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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Multitude Infrastructures
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(herein referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2020, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial

statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 37(i) to the financial statements, which describes the possible
effects of uncertainties relating to COVID-19 on Company’s operations and results as

assessed by the management.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information includad in the Board'’s Report but does not include

the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information Is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operatlons, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process,

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b) In our opinlon, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A". Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related
to the managerial remuneration is not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position. (Refer Note 31(i) to the financial statements);

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. (Refer Note
42 to the financial statements);

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. (Refer Note 43 to the
financial statements)
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2. As required by the Companles (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order") Issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we glve In "Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specifled In paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Place: Gurugram
Date: December 01, 2020

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 015125N)

W

Accountants o/
o~/ Vikas Khurana
S (Partner)
“v_td—:.ffﬁembership No. 503760)
(UDIN: 20503760AAAACF1052)
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Multitude
Infrastructure Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and If such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system

over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
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reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may eccur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 015125N
— )(‘;;-._ \ig}’ : =
SEELANAN
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"Ej(Chartemd n|
\ %\Accouma’“s @ | Vikas Khurana
\\ . a / (Partner)
N mbership No. 503760)
T : 20503760AAAACF1052)

Place: Gurugram
Date: December 01, 2020
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Refer

red to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

section of our report of even date)

(1)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of Property, plant and equipment
to cover all the items once in a year which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, property, plant and equipment were physically verified by the
management during the year and no discrepancies were noticed on such

verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us and based on the examination of the registered conveyance deed
provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising the immovable properties
building which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance
sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of land that have been taken on
lease and disclosed as Right of Use assets in the financial statements, the lease
agreements are in the name of the Company, where the Company is the lessee in

the agreement.

In our opinion, the inventories were physically verified by the Management
subsequent to year end during the month of June 2020 instead of year end due to
COVID 19 related lockdown. For the inventories for which physical count was
performed subsequent to year end, the Company has carried out the reconciliation
procedures for 100% of the inventories to ascertain existence of such inventory
physically verified from the date of the respective counts to the balance sheet date
and no discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees
and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit during the year. The Company does not have any unclaimed
deposits and accordingly the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, hence reporting under clause (vi)
of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable.

(vii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, Value Added Tax and other material statutory
dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities and generally been regular
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We are informed that Customs Duty, Sales Tax, Employees’ State Insurance,
Cess and Excise Duty are not applicable to the Company.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, Value Added Tax and other material
statutory dues, applicable to the Company, in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,

We are informed that Customs Duty, Sales Tax, Employees’ State Insurance,
Cess and Excise Duty are not applicable to the Company.

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Services
Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax as on March 31, 2020
on account of disputes.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to bank and
dues to debenture holders. The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings
from government and financial institutions.

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause
(ix) of the CARO 2016 Order is not applicable.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) The Company is a private limited company and hence provision of section 197 of
the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
CARO 2016 Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required
by the applicable accounting standards. The Company Is a private company and
hence the provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made
private placement of compulsory convertible debentures during the year under
review.

In respect of the above issue, we further report that:

(a) The requirement of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, have
been complied with; and

(b) The amounts raised have been applied by the Company during the year for the
purposes for which the funds were raised.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its directors or directors of its holding company or persons connected with him and
hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.
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(xvl) The Company Is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of Indla Act, 1934,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Flrm’s Reglstration No. 01512?1\1/9

f(.w // Vikas Khurana

'/ f
e ’/ (Partner)
X ¥~ (Membershlp No. 503760)

Place: Gurugram
Date: December 01, 2020



Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited

CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020

(Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
HRIES 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 4 212.81 353.78
(b) Right of use assets 5 284.35 -
(c) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 6 0.10 0.26
(d) Non-current tax assets 7A 2.38 2.33
(e) Other non-current assets 78 0.08 431.63
499.72 788.00
Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 3.69 2,57
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9 4.67 6.62
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 7.44 6.39
(c) Other current assets 11 4.42 10.17
20.22 25.75
Total Assets 519.94 813.75
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Share Capital 12 49.08 49.08
(b) Other equity 13 440.46 (296.07)
Total Equity 489.54 (246.99)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 - 200.00
(b) Provisions 15 1.67 2.21
(c) Other non-current liabilities 16 0.06 0.06
1.73 202.27
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 17 15.82 21.16
(i) Other financial liabilities 18 7.86 832.53
(b} Provisions 15 0.12 0.05
(c) Other current liabilities 19 4.87 4.73
28.67 858.47
Total liabilities 30.40 1,060.74
519.94 813.75

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells

Chartered Accountants /_\
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Vikas Khurana _ o \)\QL\'

Partner N V4
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Place: Gurugram
Date: December 01, 2020

For and on behalf of the board of directors

ol

Director

Place: Gurugram

Gautam Kalani

DIN: 00236279
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Date: December 01, 2020

Abhishek Bhalla
Director
DIN: 08190066



Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited

CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Notes

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
INCOME
Revenue from operations 20 98.57 152.81
Other income 21 12,75 -
Total Income (1) 111.32 152.81
EXPENSES
Cost of food and beverages consumed 22 9.47 13.84
Employee benefits expense 23 33.74 35.46
Finance costs 24 6.21 15.18
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 37.18 10.34
Other expenses 26 61.54 76.70
Total expenses (lI} 148.14 151.52
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional item and tax {I-I1) (36.82) 1.29
Exceptional item - Impairment 27 256.62 -
Profit/(Loss) before tax (293.44) 1.29
Tax expense:
Current Tax -
Deferred tax 27A 0.30 -
Profit/ {Loss) for the year (293.14) 1.29
Other Comprehensive Income
(i) ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains on defined benefit plans 1.14 0.08
(ii) Income tax effect (0.30) -
Total comprehensive income for the year (292.30) 1.37
Earnings per equity share
(1) Basic 28 (42.81) 0.26
(2) Diluted 28 (42.81) 0.26
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins and Sells For and on behalf of the board of directors ,
Chartered Accountant - ? &)
0 / _l P
; N1
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Gautam Kalani

Partner g Director

Vikas Khurana ~ — \. } (/ (L,L}“'

Place: Gurugram
Date: December 01, 2020

DIN: 00236279

Place: Gurugram
Date: December 01, 2020

Abhishek Bhalla
Director
DIN: 08190066



Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited

CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 31 March 2020
(Amount in Indlan Rupees Milllons, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
A, Cash flow from operating activitles:
Profit/ {Loss) before tax (293.14) 1.29
Non- cash adJustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreclation and amortization expense 37.18 10.34
Amortizatlon of prepayment of Leasehold Land . 5.45
Impairment of Property, plant and equipment & Right of use assets 256.62
Provision for doubtful debts 1.20 -
Interest on borrowings 621 15.18
Provision for doubtful securlty deposit 0.16 -
Llabllity written back [12.75) -
Operating loss before working capltal changes (4.52) 32.26
Changes In working capltal :
Increase in trade payables 7.41 0.83
Increase in other non financlal liabllitles . 0.68
{Decrease)/Increase in provisions (0.77) 0.48
Increase !n other financial llablfitles (14.85) -
Decrease in other financlal assets - (1.27)
Decrease In other non financlal assets 021 =
(increase)/decrease in Inventories {1.12) 0.15
Decrease In trade receivables 0.74 0.98
Cash from operations (12.90) 34.11
Direct taxes pald {net of refunds) {0.05) (0.26)
Net cash flow from operating actlvities (A) [12.85) 33.85
B. Cash flows from Investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (0.08) (0.30)
Net cash flow used In Investing actlvitles (B) {0.09) (0.30)
C. Cash flow from financing activitles
Interest paid (6.21) (15.81)
Proceeds from Non current borrowing - 200.00
Proceeds from current borrowing 220.30 -
Repayment of long term borrowing {200.00} {216.35)
Net cash flow used in financing actlvitles (C) 14.09 (32.16)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C} 1.05 1.39
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6.39 5.00
Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year 7.44 6.39
Components of cash and cash equlvalents
Cash on hand 0.41 039
Balance with scheduled banks in
- Current accounts 7.03 6.00
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10) 7.44 6.39
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 1to44
As per our report of even date
o

For Deloltte Haskins and Sglls

Chartered Accountanﬁ»‘
Nk I, ! Accountants

Vikas Khurana WAk

Partner p
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Place: Gurugram
Date: December 01, 2020
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For and on behalf of the board of directors

@

\MGautam Kalanl
Director
DIN: 00236279

Place: Gurugram
Date: December 01, 2020

Director
DIN: 08190066



Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited

CIN: U45209D12008PTC174287

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount In indlan Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

a. Share capital

Equity
Particulars No. of shares Amount
As at 1 Aprll 2018 49,07,960 49.08
Issued during the year
At 31 March 2019 49,07,960 49.08
Issued during the year
At 31 March 2020 49,07,960 49.08
b. Other equity
For the year ended March 31, 2020
Reserves & Surplus
Other Compulsoril
Securities premlum| Retalned earnlngs | Comprehensive Com‘/,ertlblev Total Equity
Income {OCI} Debentures
As at 1 Aprll 2018 11.02 (309.03) 0.57 = {297.44)
Profit for the year - 1.29 0.08 137
As At 31 March 2019 11.02 (307.74) 0.65 - (296.07)
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - (293.14) 0.84 - {292.30)
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures issued during the year {Refer note 13) - ¥ - 1,028.83 1,028.83
As At 31 March 2020 11.02 {600.88) 1.49 1,028.83 440.46
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1to 44
o .

For Deloltte Haskins and Sells
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Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited
CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1. Corporate Information

Multitude Infrastructure Private Limited (“the ‘Company”) is a private limited company domiciled in in
India and incorporated under the provisions of Indian Companies Act, 2013, with its registered office
situated at 69, Second Floor, Regal Building, Connaught Place, New Delhi- 110001.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Mountainia Developers and Hospitality Pvt Limited. The
Company is primarily engaged in business of managing and operating hotels, long term and short term
stay homes, guest houses and such other accommodations including ancillary services providing an
affordable and predicable stay experience to customer.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on December 01,
2020.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

A.

Items Measurement basis

Financial assets and liabilities — Refer accountingﬁo_li_qL Fair Value/ Amortised cost

regarding financial instrument <astruch

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability “’\7 Meent value of defined benefit

14}
Kl‘; Kj‘: blgations
\ =\
—— \\."'fj.:\\
N NZZ
/ f& N

ST G et ‘|(f)

W \ Y
-'\O o o @ /

Statement of compliance

These financial statements (‘financial statements’) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standard (‘IndAS’) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), read together with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently
applied, by the Company, to all the periods presented in the said financial statements, except where a
newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing account standard
required a change to the accounting policy hitherto to in use.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. Presentation currency is the currency in which the company’s financial statements
are presented. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an
entity operates and is normally the currency in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash.
All the financial information presented in Indian Rupees (INR) have been rounded to the nearest millions,

unless otherwise stated.
Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis using historical cost convention and
on an accrual method of accounting, except for the following items:

\Acuouman\s / (D



Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited
CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on this basis.

Measurement of fair values
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e |n the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e Inthe absence of a principal market, in most advantageous market for the asset of liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
o Llevel 2: Valuation technigques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable
e Level 3: Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such
as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. External valuers are
involved for valuation of significant assets and liabili 'mc management selects external valuer on
various criteria such as market knowledge, r i endence and whether professional
standarﬂs are maintained by valuer. The manag g ‘fafter discussions with the Company’s

ternal: valuers which valuation techniques anq 1n utstxo use f each case.
i
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Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited
CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this
analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the
fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is

reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in
the relevant notes:

e Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 37)
o Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 35)
o Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 35)

3. Significant accounting polices

A

Current/ non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when:
i. Itis expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal

operating cycle;
ii. itis expected to be realised within twelve months from the reporting date;

jii. it is held primarily for the purposes of being traded; or
iv. Itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability

for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when:
i. itis expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;
ii. itis due to be settled within twelve months from the reporting date;
iii. itis held primarily for the purposes of being traded; or
iv. the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months from the reporting date

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. ( b(
_ \2\
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities, \Z\ A
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Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited
CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
or cash equivalents. Based on the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets
for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current vs non-current classification of assets and

liabilities.
B. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their respective
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e.
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also
recognised in OCl or profit or loss, respectively).

C. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:
« Debt instruments at amortised cost
¢ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
o Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or Ioss (FVTPL)

« Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehenswe/e Ay
* Equity instruments in subsidiaries carried at cost f‘~* "0
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Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited
CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual

cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The category applies to the Company’s
trade receivables, unbilled revenue, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, security deposits,

etc.
Debt instrument at FVTOC!

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and

selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCl). On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the
equity to Statement of Profit & Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported

as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC|, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes

recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments (other than equity investments in subsidiaries) in scope of Ind AS 109 are
measured at fair value. Equity instruments in subsidiaries are carried at cost in separate financial
statements less impairments if any. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured
at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.
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Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited
CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar financial

assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

o The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in
OClI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through

profit and loss.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in th\e’i'e'spec{iye carrying amounts is recognised in thes&éﬁgmgrﬁt_ of profit or loss.
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Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited
CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognhised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simulta neously.

D. Property, plant and equipment
i.  Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.
Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalised until the property, plant and equipment are ready
for use.

The cost comprises purchase price, freight, expenditure incurred towards transformation of hotel
including any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any
trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Such properties are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the
component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is

materially different from that of the remaining asset.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in
the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or

loss as incurred.
ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation on plant, property and equipment is provided as per Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013
on Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:

Property, plant and equipment Useful life as per Schedule |l
Building 60 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Electrical Installation 10 years

Computers /\/q/:k,:\ i 3 YE,BES
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Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited
CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

asky

The Company, based on management estimates, depreciates certain items of building, plant and
machinery, electrical installation, furniture and fixtures & computers over estimated useful lives which
are lower than the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The management
believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over
which the assets are likely to be used. The useful life considered by management are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment Useful life considered
Building (Interior work) 20 years
Plant & Machinery 10 years
Furniture & Fixtures 5-8 years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the plant, property and equipment (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement
when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net realisable
Value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on a firstin first out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and estimated costs

necessary to make sale.
Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's {CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or company of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies

or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth«year. To-éstimate cash
flaw projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgejté.!_(fc\arecasts, the . Company

Iaf_o‘-._j e .’_{.%;‘;j;‘l?.;l\polates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining\@wt? rate for subsequent
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Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited
CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the
market in which the asset is used.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
useful life.

G. Employee benefits
i. Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short term employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the
related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting

any amount already paid.
ii. Post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits

Provident Fund: Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders
the related service. The contribution amount is paid by the Company to Employee Provident Fund

Organisation (EPFO).

Gratuity: Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. Gratuity liability of
employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method at the
close of the year. The Company provides for the liability in the books of accounts based on the actuarial
valuation and the gratuity expense is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCi
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent

periods. y
f S N
Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of: ,'g( L} \ -
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CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

e

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the

statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments

and non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

i. General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the

obligation, the provision is reversed.

ii. Contingent Assets/ Liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, then the
related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes to accounts when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation
that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration which is expected to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of the goods or services to
the customer. Revenue is recognised net off indirect taxes and discounts.

Revenue of hotel operations from room revenue, sale of foods and beverages and other services

Revenue is recognised at the transaction prices that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue

comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages and other services relating. el operations.
; : . . E/ (D UC‘,
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

A ““'ﬂ&&‘ﬁi lease payments.

.

{
ol
wlA
=

artprpd | ||| U
suiitants y f/ k i)
»/’ .

and maintenance of quality standard of the hotel properties and the operator is contractually liable to
pay upon services being availed by the customer. Hence, revenue is presented on net basis in profit &
loss statement after reduction of commission paid to the Operator.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument {for example, prepayment, extension) but does not consider the expected credit losses.
Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Leases

As per IND AS 116, the Company assesses that the contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether:

(1) The contract involves the use of an identified asset,

(2) The Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and

(3) The Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

Company as a lessee

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease
term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall
comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets
is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if
any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated from
the commencement date over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-
of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments over the lease term.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate.
For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company adopts the incremental borrowing rate
for the entire portfolio of leases as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable
lease payments, exercise price of a purchase option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease.
The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance
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The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and thereisa
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining
amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases for which the underlying
asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these low value leases are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are
recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Taxes

Taxes comprises current income tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other

comprehensive income.
i. Currentincome tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period/year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates
and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

o When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

——the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

&\
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« In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits (including MAT credit) and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

« When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

« Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that itis probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets {including MAT credit available) is reviewed at each reporting
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the

underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances
change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill
related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts and circumstances

existing at the acquisition date.

If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCl/
capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All other acquired tax
benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

Goods and Services Tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax paid, except:

e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part of the expense item, as applicable

o==When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax mcludad '\"’”UC,#O

NG
5 b, )
k ?fj\ / /<)

n:d
Mn'l ]
Z\ 2
/C; Of-r“-"‘--.._.—’_ '\(.\
Y x N
S -



Muititude Infrastructures Private Limited
CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and taxes applicable) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue that have changed the number of

outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the period plus
the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive

potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

Cash flow statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts
or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Events occurring after the balance sheet date

Based on the nature of the event, the Company identifies the events occurring between the balance
sheet date and the date on which the financial statements are approved as ‘Adjusting Event’ and ‘Non-
adjusting event’. Adjustments to assets and liabilities are made for events occurring after the balance
sheet date that provide additional information materially affecting the determination of the amounts
relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date or because of statutory requirements or because
of their special nature. For non-adjusting events, the Company may provide a disclosure in the financial
statements considering the nature of the transaction.
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CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount in Indlan Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

4. Property, plant & equipment

Furniture & Plant &

Bullding Computer Fixtures Equipment Machinery e
Gross carrying amount®
At 1 Aprll 2018 370.89 1.20 1.99 0.48 9.90 384.46
Additions - 0.15 0.16 0.31
Disposals - 3 = - - -
At 31 March 2019 370.89 1.35 2.15 0.48 9.90 384.77
Additions = - 0.06 0.03 0.09
Disposals - - - = - L
At 31 March 2020 370.89 1.35 2.15 0.54 9.93 384.86
Accumulated Depreciation*
At 1 April 2018 13.61 0.36 0.69 0.25 5.74 20.65
Charge for the year 6.81 0.41 0.34 0.11 2.67 10.34
Disposals - - - - - -
At 31 March 2019 20.42 0.77 1.03 0.36 8.41 30.99
Charge for the year** 30.06 0.38 0.84 0.06 0.39 31.73
Impairment (Refer note 39) 109.33 : - . - 109.33
Disposals - = = = = =
At 31 March 2020 159.81 1.15 1.87 0.42 8.80 172.05
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2020 211.08 0.20 0.28 0.12 1.13 212,81
At 31 March 2019 350.47 0.58 1.12 0.12 1.49 353.78

*During earlier year, the Company had adopted Ind AS with the date of initial application being April 1, 2016 and the Property, plant and equipments were not revalued at fair
value or at depreciated value since then. During the current year, the Company has netted off accumulated depreciation till March 31, 2016 of Rs. 151.06 Million with the gross
block of PPE as at March 31, 2016 of Rs. 533.09 Million. There is no impact on the net written down value as at March 31, 2019. Further, comparative figures related to amount

paid for leasehold land which was earlier classified as property plant and equipment has now been reclassified to prepayment of leasehold land as at March 31, 2019.

Change in Useful Life

** The Company has revised useful life of certain assets of basis internal technical evaluation, pursuant to this revision an additional depreciation o
recorded during the current year.




Multitude Infrastructure Private Limited

CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwisc)

5. Right of Use asset

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Balance as at April 01, 2019 437.08

Additions during the year -

Disposals during the year - -
Depreciation charged for the year (5.45) -
Impairment of asset (Refer note 39) (147.28) -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 284.35 -

IndAS 116 - Leases
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' with the date of initial application being April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 replaces

Ind AS 17 — Leases and related interpretation and guidance. Accordingly, the Leasehold Land acquired by the Company has
been reclassified from prepayment of leasehold land to 'Right of Use' Asset and the rent expense on the same has been

reclassified to depreciation expenses.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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CIN: U45209D12008PTC174287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

6. Other financial assets- Non current

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Security deposits
- Unsecured, Considered good
- Doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful security deposits

7A. Non-current tax assets (net)

0.10 0.26

0.16 -

0.26 0.26
{0.16)

0.10 0.26

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Advance Income Tax including Tax deducted at source

78. Other non-current assets

2.38

2.33

2.38

2.33

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Prepaid expenses 0.08 -
Prepayment of Leasehold land {Refer Note 5) - 431.63
0.08 431.63

8. Inventories {valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Food and beverages (excluding liquor and wine) 0.46 0.41
Liquor and wine 0.65 0.72
Stores, cutlery, linen and others 2.58 1.44
3.69 2.57

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year as consumption of food and beverages including liquor and wine amounting to INR 9.47 Million {March 31, 2019:
INR 13.84 Million) and consumption of stores, cutlery, lines and others amounting to INR 14.59 Million (March 31, 2019: INR 18.41 Million).

9. Trade receivables

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Trade receivables*

Break-up for security detalls:
Trade receivables
Unsecured, Considered good
Doubtful

Gross receivables

Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Doubtful

Net receivables

4.67 6.62
4.67 6.62
4.67 6.62
1.20 -
5.87 6.62
1.20 -
1.20

4.67 6.62

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 60 days from the date of invoice.

* includes receivables from related party INR 3.69 Mn {March 31, 2019: NIL)- Refer note 32

10. Cash and cash equivalents

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Balances with banks
On current accounts = =~
Cash on hand f’f’/ WoEA

Y% 7.03 6.00
(of b o\ 041 039
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Notes to flnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount In Indlan Rupees Milllons, unless stated otherwise)

11, Other current assets- Current

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Unsecured and considered good

Subsidy claim receivables

Advance to suppliers

Prepayment of Leasehold Land (Refer Note 5)
Prepaid expenses

Balance with government authorities
Total

—
o S kN
/@i‘a"“@'

-2 accountants
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B 5.45
132 3.32
3.38 9.01
1.04 116
4.42 10.17
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Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount in Indlan Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

12. Equity share capital

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Authorized capital
Equity shares

50,00,000 (31 March 2019: 50,00,000) equity shares of INR 10 each 50.00 50.00
Total authorized share capital 50.00 50.00
Issued, subscribed and fully pald-up capital
Equity shares
49,07,960 (31 March 2019: 49,07,960) equity shares of INR 10 each 49.08 49.08
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid equity share capital 49.08 49,08
a) Reconcillatlon of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Equity shares

No. of shares Amount
As at 1 April 2018 49,07,960 4,90,79,600
Issued during the year - -
As at 31 March 2019 49,07,960 4,90,79,600
Issued during the year - -
As at 31 March 2020 49,07,960 4,90,79,600

b} Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and equal rights in distribution of
profit/surplus in proportionate to the equity share held by shareholder. in the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining

assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c) Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity shares

As at 31 March 2020
No. of shares % holding

Name of shareholders
No. of shares

As at 31 March 2019

% holding

49,07,959 99.99%

49,07,954

I
|
|
| Mountainia Developers and Hospitality Private Limited*
‘ Emaar MGF Land Limited

99.99%

*On December 23, 2019; Mountainia Developers and Hospitality Private Limited, engaged in the business of owing, operating and managing hotels and resorts, has acquired 99.99% of

the voting interest representing 4,907,959 shares (face value of INR 10 each) of the Company by entering into a share purchase agreement.

d) Shares held by Holding Company

As at 31 March 2020
No. of shares Rs in Million

Name of shareholders
No. of shares

As at 31 March 2019

Rs in Million

Mountainia Developers and Hospitality Private Limited* 49,07,959 49.08

Emaar MGF Land Limited 49,07,954

45}
(This space has been intentionally left blank) 'g %
e

|
|
I
|
|
* 1 share of INR 10/- each is held by Mr. Rakesh Kumar Prusti as a Nominee of Mountainia Developers and Hospitality Private Limited.

49.08
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13. Other equlty
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
a. Retained earnings {599.39) (307.09)
b. Securities premium 11.02 11.02
c. Compulsory convertible debentures 1,028.83 -
Total 440.46 {296.07)
a. Retalned earnings
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year (307.09) (308.46)
Add: Profit/ (Loss) for the year {292.30) 1.37
Balance at the end of year (599.39) {307.09)
b. Securitles premlum
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 11.02 11.02
Balance at the end of year 11.02 11.02
a. Retalned earning: Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.
b. Securitles premlum: Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
c. Compulsorlly Convertlble Debentures
As at As at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Compulsory Convertible debentures issued during the year®
Balance at the end of year

1,028.83

1,028.83

* The Company had obtained foans from EMAAR MGF Land Limited (Parent Company upto December 22, 2019) pursuant to agreement dated April 01, 2014, to meet its business requirements.
As on October 31, 2019; the amount outstanding was Rs. 1,028.83 Mn. As per the loan agreement, the loan was repayable on demand

As on 14th November, 2019, it was agreed between EMAAR and the Company to satisfy the outstanding unsecured loan by issuing 10,288,349 Compulsory Convertible debenture (CCD) of Rs
100/- each of Company to Emaar and the Company has issued 10,288,349 CCD's to EMAAR. CCD's carried a coupon rate of 6% per annum. EMAAR and the Company has agreed that every 2
(two) convertible debenture shall be converted into 1 (one) equity share of the Company after 10 years from the date of issuance of CCD.

On December 23, 2019, Mountainia Developers and Hospitality Private Limited (MDH) (Parent Company w.e.f. from December 23, 2019) has entered into a'share purchase agreement (SPA) for
the purchase of entire stake in Company with EMAAR for the total consideration of Rs, 450.27 Mn (INR 335.93 Mn paid for CCD and INR 114.34 Mn paid for equity shares) and EMAAR has
thereby transferred 10,288,349 CCD's held by them in Company to MDH at the same terms and condition as mentioned above.

Further, as per the letter dated December 23, 2019; MDH has opted its voluntary option as per the debenture deed and have agreed to convert the CCD's into Equity shares after the expiry of 2
years from the date of allotment instead of earlier mentioned period of 10 years.

As outlined in terms of of issue of CCD, the Company is contractually liable to pay the interest component on CCD. However, considering the substance of transaction i.e. eventual conversion
into equity and transaction being entered into between related parties and cash flow position, the entire amount of Rs 1,028.83 Mn has been classified as other equity.

14. Borrowlngs

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Term Loan

-from Bank - 200.00
Total - 200.00
Current C -
Non Current - 200.00
Total = 200.00

Terms & Conditlons
Term loan of Rs NIl (March 31, 2019: INR 200 Mn) from Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank
Balance outstanding as at March 31, 2019 is repaid in July 2019. Long term loan from bank carried Effective Interest Rate of - 9.65% linked to 1 year MCLR + spread at the time of disbursement.

The loan was secured by equitable mortgage of immovable property and further secured by way of hypothecation of utilities/ furniture and fixtures. This term loan was backed by standby letter

of credit erstwhile holding company.
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15. Provisions
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Employee benefit obligations
- Compensated absences 038 0.51
- Gratuity 141 1.75
1.79 2.26
Current {Refer Note 29 and 30) 0.12 0.05
Non Current (Refer Note 29 and 30) 1.67 221
16. Other non-current llabllitles
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Security deposits received 0.06 0.06
0.06 0.06
17, Trade payables
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 34) 0.20 .
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises* 15.62 21.16
15.82 21.16
* includes payable to related party INR 5.30 Mn (March 31, 2019: NIL)- Refer note 32
18, Other financlal liabilitles
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Loan from Parent Company (Refer Note 32) 7.18 817.54
Interest accrued but not due to parent Company (Refer Note 32) - 14.99
Management fees payable to related parties (Refer Note 32) 0.68 -
7.86 832.53
19. Other current llabllitles
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Advances from customers 3.56 2.20
Statutory dues payable 131 2.53
4.87 4,73
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CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount In Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

20. Revenue from operations

Far the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Sale of products and services®
- Room rental 66.02 103.84
- Food and beverages 29.66 44,63
- Other operational revenue 2.89 4.34
98.57 152.81

* Revenue from operatlons is net off operator commission to OYO Hotels and Homes Private Limited amounting to INR 4.35 Million {March 31, 2019: NiL) and INR 3.91 Million to Fortune Park

Hotels Limited (March 31, 2019: INR 7.00 Million) respectively.

21. Other income

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Liabllity Written back 1275 g
12,75 =

22. Cost of food and beverages ¢

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Inventory at the beginning of the year 113 1.14
Add: Purchases 9.45 13.83
10.58 14,97
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 111 113
Cost of food and beverages consumed 9.47 13.84
23. Employee benefits expense
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Salaries, wages and bonus 28.05 29.36
Contributlon to provident and other funds (Refer note 29} 238 181
Gratulty expense {refer note 29) 039 055
Staff welfare expenses 292 3.74
33.74 35.46
24, Finance cost
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest on Borrowings 6,21 15.18
6.21 15.18
(SRl
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Mullltude Infrastructures Private Limited

CIN: U45209D12008PTC174287

Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount In Indlan Rupees Milllons, unless stated otherwise}

25. Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Depreclatlon of property, plant & equipment {refer note 4) 31.73 10.34
Depreclatlon of right of use assets (refer note 5) 5.45 -
37.18 10.34
26. Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Consumption of Stores, Cutlery, linen and others 14,59 18.41
Electricity and power cost 19.75 21.61
Rent expenses - 5.45
Commisslon and brokerage 8.71 15.69
Printing & stationery expenses 0.85 0.58
Rates and taxes 4.00 2.58
Repalrs and malntenance
- Building 3.78 3.88
- Plant and Machinery 121 1.17
Advertising and sales promotion 0.22 0.44
Travelllng and conveyance 0.36 0.38
Legal and professional fee 1.01 0.32
Group Management fees 1.03 1.04
Payment to auditor {refer detall below) 0.75 0.80
Provislon for doubtful debts 1.20 -
Provision for doubtful security deposit 0.16 -
Miscellaneous expenses 3.92 4.35
61.54 76.70
Payment to auditor
- Statutory audit fee (excluding GST) 0,75 0.80
0.75 0.80
27. Exceptional Items
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Provision on impalrment on Property, plant & equipments and Right of Use assets {Refer note 39) 256.62 -
256.62 -
27A. Deferred tax liabllitles/ (assets)
The components that gave rise to deferred tax assets and liabllitles are as follows:
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Deferred tax llabllitles In relation to:
Interest on Compulsory convertible debenture 4.39 -
Property, plant and equipment = 1.33
Total Deferred tax liabllitles 4.39 1.33
Deferred tax assets In relation to:
Provision for gratuity and leave encashment 0.02 0.07
Property, plant and equipment 4.82 -
Provislon on Bonus 011 0.03
Interest on Borrowings . 153
Provislon for doubtful debts 031 -
Effect of unabsorbed depreclation 88.77 79.95
Provision for doubtful security deposits 0.04 -
Total Deferred tax assets 94.07 81.58
Net deferred tax llabllitles/ (assets)* {89.68) (80.25)

* Deferred tax assets are not recognised due to no reasonable certainty of future taxable income.
* As on March 31, 2020, the Company has created deferred tax assets to the extent of deferred tax liabilities due to no reasonable certainty of future taxable income.

Note: Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they are governed by the same taxation authority.
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Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited

CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287

Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

28. Eaining pet share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding durlng the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the Profit /(loss) attributable to shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares,

Basic and Dlluted EPS computation:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Profit/(Loss) attributable to shareholders (for basic and diluted) (293.14) 1.29
Weighted average number of shares 68,47,567 49,07,960
Baslc and Diluted EPS (42.81) 0.26
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Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited

CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287

Notes to financiel statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount In Indlan Rupees Mlllions, unless stated otherwise)

29, Employee benefits

{a) Defined Contributlon Plans

The Company makes contributions towards employees provident fund scheme. Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs, as specified in

the rules of the scheme, to these defined contribution plan. During the year, the Company has recognised the following amount in the statement of profit and loss:

Partlculars Asat G

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Provident fund (refer note 23) 2.38 1.81
Total 2.38 1.81
(b} Defined Benefit Plans

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Each employee rendering continuous service of 5 years or more is entitled to receive gratuity amount

equal to 15/26 of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The Company provides for the liability in the books of accounts based on the actuartal valuation.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit or loss and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Changes In the present value of the deflned benefit obligation (unfunded gratuity) Is, as follows:

Particulars (o ——

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Defined benefit obligations as at the beginning of the year 1.75 1.38
Current service cost 0.26 0.44
Interest expense 0.13 0.11
Remeasurement (gain}/ loss - OC| (0.73) (0.09)
Benefits paid + {0.09)
Defined benefit obligations as at 31 March 2020 1.41 1.75
Presented as:
Current portion 0.09 0.02
Non-current portion 1.32 173
Amount recognlzed in Statement of Profit and Loss:

As at As at

ks 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current service cost 0.26 0.44
Net interest expense 0.13 0.11
Amount recognlzed in Statement of Profit and Loss 0.39 0.55
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income:

] As at As at
Eicar 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Remeasurement of Net Benefit Liability/ Asset 0.73) 10.09)
Total (0.73) (0.09)
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and leave encashment obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

As at As at
e 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Discount rate (per annum)* 6.23% 7.66%
Salary Escalation rate {per annum) 5.00% 8.00%
Withdrawal rate (per annum) 7.00% 7.00%
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 2012-14  100% of IALM 2012-14
Retirement age (Years) 58 years 58 years
*The discount rate as at March 31, 2020 & March 31, 2019 is based on 10 years government bond vields as at 31 March 2020 and March 31, 2019 respectively.
The Iimpact of sensitivity due to changeés in the significant actuarial assumptions an the defined benefit abligattons is as follows:

As at Asat
Rarticulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Discount rate
- Increase by 0.50% (0.06) {0.13)

0.06 0.14

- Decrease by 0.50%




Salary escalation rate

- Increase by 1% 0.13 0.14
- Dacrease by 1% (0.11} (0.13)
Withdrawal rate
- Increase by 5% 0.01
- Decrease by 5% (0.04) LS
Uabllitles are very less sensitive due to change In mortallty assumptions, Hence, sensltivities due to change In mortallty are ignored.
Maturity Profile of Deflned Benefit Obligation:

i Asat Asat
L ENTE 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Year1 0.09 002
Year2 0.0 0.02
Year 3 0.10 0.02
Year4 0.14 0.03
Year 5 0.10 0.03
After Sth Year 211 1.62
Total 2.63 1.74

The welghted average duration of the defined benefit obligation Is 10 years.
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Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited

CIN: U452090L2008PTC174287

Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Amount In Indlan Rupees Milllons, unless stated otherwlse)

30. Employee beneflts - Compensated absence

Long term employee benefit - Compensated absence

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit or loss and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Changes In the present value of the long term employee benefit Is, as follows:

Particulars SR e
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Long term employee benefits as at the beginning of the year 0.51 0.60
Current service cost 031 0.24
Interest expense 0.04 0.05
Remeasurement (gain)/ loss - OCI (0.41) 0.15
Benefits paid (0.08) (0.53)
Long term employee benefits as at 31 March 2020 0.38 0.51
Presented as:
Current portion 0.03 0.03
Non-current portion 035 048
Amount recognized In Statement of Profit and Loss:
As at As at
el 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current service cost 031 024
Net interest expense 0.04 0.05
Amount recognlzed In Statement of Profit and Loss 0.35 0.29
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income:
As at As at
ks 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Remeasurement of Net Liability/ Asset {0.41) 0.15
Total (0.41) 0.15
The principal assumptions used in determining compensated absences obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:
As at As at
e 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Discount rate (per annum)* 6.23% 7.66%
Salary Escalation rate (per annum) 5.00% 8.00%
Withdrawal rate {per annum)
Upto 30 Years 3.00%
30 -44 Years 7.00% 2.00%
45 Years and above 1.00%
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 2012-14  100% of IALM 2006-08
58 years 58 years

Retirement age (Years)

*The discount rate as at March 31, 2020 & March 312, 2019 is based on 10 years government bond yields as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2020 respectively.
Due to its long term employee benefit, the company Is exposed to following significant risk

Change in Discount Rate : A decrease in discount rate will increase plan liability.

Salary Risk : The present value of the long term employee benefits is calculated by reference to the future salaries of the plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants

will increase the plans liability.
Withdrawal Rate : A decrease in withdrawal rate will increase plan liability.

The impact of sensitivity due to charges In the significant actuarial assumptions on the lang term employee benefits is as follows:

Particul As at As at

s U1erS 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Discount rate

- Increase by 0.50% (0.02) (0.12)
- Decrease by 0.50% 0.02 0.4
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Salary escalation rate

- Increase by 1% 0.04 0.13
- Decrease by 1% (0.03) [0.12)
Withdrawal rate
- Incruase by 5% 0.02 0.02
- Decrease by 5% (0.03) (0.04)
Liabllities are very less sensitive due to change in mortality assumptions. Hence, sensitivitles due to change In mortality are Ignored.
The following payments are expected contributions to the long term employee benefits in future years:
Particulars At A&
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Year 1 0.03 0.03
Year 2 0.03 001
Year 3 0.04 0.01
Year 4 0.03 001
Year S 0.03 0.01
After Sth Year 0.60 043
Total 0.76 0.51
The welghted average duration of the long term employee benefits Is 10 years.
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Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited

CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount In Indlan Rupees Milllans, unless stated otherwise)

31. Commitments and Contingencles

(1) Contingent llabllitles
There are no pending litigation/ contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2020.

(1) Commitments

Partlculars e Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Capltal commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for {net of capital advances) Nil Nil
Other commitments
Nil NIl

The Company has other commitments for services which are issued after considering requirements per operating cycle for services,
employee benefits. The Company does not have any long term commitment or material non-cancellable contractual commitments/
contracts which might have a material impact on the financial statements.
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Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited

CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287

Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount in Indian Rupees Milllons, unless stated otherwise)

33. Unhedged forelgn currency exposure
The Company does not have derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts or options as on March 31, 2020

The year-end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:
As at As at

Ragisulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Amount in foreign currency {USD)
Amount in Indian Rupee (INR)

34, Dues to Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises
The dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to the extent information

available with the company is given below:

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
{i) Amount remaining unpaid to suppliers under MSMED as at the end of the year
-Principal amount 0.20 =
-Interest amount due thereon - -
(i) Amount of payments made to suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year
0.59

-Principal amount
-Interest actually paid under section 16 of MSMED
(iii) Amount of interest due and payable for delay in payment (which has been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding interest under MSMED
(iv) The amount of interest
- Accrued at the end of accounting year
- Remaining unpaid at the end of accounting Year
(v) Interest remaining due and payable to suppliers disallowable as deductible expenditure
under the Income- Tax Act, 1961

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Multltude Infrastructures Private Limited
CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

{Amount In Indlan Rupees Milllons, unless stated otherwise)

35. Falr value measurement

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the company and provides additional information on the balance sheet.

The carrying value of financial instruments through categories as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 is as follows:

a. Financial Assets

Amortized Cost

Fair value through profit & loss

As at As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Other financlal assets
Trade receivables 4.67 6.62 - -
Security deposits 0.10 0.26 - -
Cash & Cash equivalent 7.44 6.39 . .
Total 12.21 13.27 E -
b. Financial Liabllities
Amortized Cost Falr value through profit & loss
As at As at As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 15.82 21.16 - -
Borrowings - 200.00 - -
Other financial liabilities 7.86 832.53 - -
Total 23.68 1,053.69 = -

¢. Falr value hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date

under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement

which are described as follows:

1) Level1
Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

1) Level 2
Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included within level 1 for the asset or liability.

) Level 3
Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to observable related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by
market participants.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities:

Flnanclal assets and llabllities measured at falr value

March 31, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - - - .
March 31, 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - - g
.ﬁ 4
A o
!
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Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited

CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

36. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade payables and employee liabilities . The main purpose of these financial liabilities is
to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that

derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk

comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk includes trade payables and trade receivables

Interest risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates,

company does not have fixed rate interest bearing long term and short term debts. A change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect

significantly on profit or loss and equity.

Foreign Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The

Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is

denominated in a foreign currency).
At March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, the Company has no exposure in foreign currency.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The

Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

(a) Trade receivables
The Company does not have significant risks from the customers. However, an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual

basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 9. The Company does

not hold collateral as security.

A - As at As at
Ageing (Net of Provision) March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Not due - -
0-60 days past due 4.36 5.34
60-120 days past due 0.21 0.61
120-180 days past due 0.00 0.19
More than 180 days 0.10 0.48
4.67 6.62
Proviston for doubtful debts
. As at As at
Ageing March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Not due -
0-60 days past due P 0.11
60-120 days past due /[ ~& 0.27
120-180 days past due q_,/-’ "\\ o 0.53
More than 180 days | S| L}, il 0.29
\=\ iy 1.20 .
\ 4




Reconcillation of provision for doubtful debts - Trade recelvables

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Provislon at beglnning
Addition during the year
Reversal during the year
Utilised during the year
Provislon at closing

(b) Financlal instruments and cash deposits

1.20

1.20

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company's treasury department. Investment of surplus funds are made only with approved
counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
balance sheet at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 is the carrying amount as given in Note 9.

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds doing a liquidity planning exercise.
The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of short term and long term loans. The

Company’s treasury function reviews the liquidity position on an ongoing basis. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Less than 3

On demand 3to 12 months  More than 12 months Total
months
As at 31 March 2020
Trade payables - 15.82 15.82
Other financial liabilities 7.87 - 7.87
7.87 15.82 = 23.69
As at 31 March 2019
Borrowings - - 200.00 200.00
Trade payables - 21.16 - - 21.16
Other financial liabilities 832.53 - - - 832.53
832.53 21.16 200.00 1,053,69
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Multitude Infrastructures Private Limited

CIN: U45209DL2008PTC174287

Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Amount In Indlan Rupees Milllons, unless stated otherwise)

37. Signlificant accounting Judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,

expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent fiabilities. Uncertainty about these judgements, estimates and assumptions could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and the revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the

estimate is revised.

{1) Estimation of uncertalnties related to global health pandemic on COVID 19

Company operations have been severely impacted due to the COVID -19 pandemic and management has undertaken/is undertaking various cost savings initiatives to conserve cash.
In evaluating the impact of COVID-19 the possible impact on its financial position, the management has assessed the impact of macro-economic conditions on its business and the
plant and equipment (PPE) and Right to use assets (ROU) and Trade receivables as at the balance sheet date. In this regard,

carrying value of its major assets comprising of Property,
uation for developing estimates on the basis of all available information

the management has carefully considered the circumstances and risk exposures arising from the COVID-19 sit
in its assessment of impact thereof on its financial reporting

While assessing the recoverable amount of PPE & ROU, the Company has used significant assumptions such as hote! occupancy rates, average room rate per hotel, terminal growth
rate and weighted average cost of capital
Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known events arising from COVID- 19 pandemic in the preparation of these financial statements. The
associated economic impact of the pandemic is highly dependent on variables that are difficult to predict, The impact assessment of COVID 19 is a continuing process given the
uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and actual results may differ materially from these estimates. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to

future economic conditions and any significant impact of these changes would be recognized in the financial statements as and when these material changes to economic conditions

arise.

(1) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

a) Impalrment of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets
The Company has one hotel property named "5 by OYO" {Jaipur) which is an identifiable asset that generates cash inflows, hence identified as cash generating unit. The Company

assesses the carrying amount of hotel property {CGU) to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. Where the carrying
amount of CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss (if any) is recognised in the

statement of profit and loss.

While assessing the recoverable amount, the Company used the discounted cash flow approach including various significant estimates and assumptions such as forecast of

future revenue, operating margins, growth rate and selection of the discount rates. The key assumptions used for the calculations are as follows:

Partlculars As at March 31, 2020

Discount Rate {pre tax rate of WACC)
Long Term Growth Rate

11.75%
5.00%

As at March 31, 2020, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU is lower than its carrying amount. Accordingly, the company has taken an impairment for INR 256.62 Mn
which exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.

b} Loss Allowance on trade recelvables
An impairment analysis of trade receivables is performed at each reporting period based on the customer's creditworthiness and existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates, In calculating impairment loss, the Company has also considered the likelihood of consequential default considering emerging situations due to COVID-19 and
has taken into account estimates of possible effect from the pandemic relating to COVID-19, Basis this assessment, the allowance for doubtful trade receivables as at March 31,
2020 is considered adequate

¢) Defined benefit plans (gratulty benefits) and Compensated absences

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future. These include the determination of discount rate, future salary
increment rate and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these

assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

{This space has been intentionally left blank}
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38, Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issu
holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

ed equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital
using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

ol

Total financial liabilities 23.68 1,053.69
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 7.44 6.39
Net debt 16.24 1,047.30
Total Capital 489.54 {246.99)
Capital and net debt 505.77 800.30

3% 131%

Gearing ratio

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

39, Disclosure pursuant to ind AS 36 *Impalrment of assets”

As on the reporting date, the Company has conducted impairment evaluation of tangible assets- Building and right of use asset- Leasehold Land and has recognised provision
for impairment in the value of building of Rs. 109.33 Mn (Previous year Rs. Nil) and right of use assets of Rs. 147.28 Mn {Previous year Rs. Nil} in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The recoverable amount of this cash-generating unit (S by OYQ" hotel) is determined at Rs. 497.13 Mn as calculated by the Company's management, based on a value in
use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the directors, discount rate of 11.75% per annum and long term growth rate of 5% per
annum. The recoverable amount has been calculated as per the provisions of Ind AS 36 "impairment of Assets".

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the expected occupancy in the hotel property, expected Average room rate {ARR), other expected operation and
maintenance cost and future long term growth throughout the budget period, after adjusting the negative impact of COVID.

The key assumptions used for computation of value in use is as under:

1, Long term growth rate - Long term growth rate has been calculated based on the latest available estimates by Economist intelligence unit (EIV), GDP growth rate and

inflation rate in India.
2. Risk-adjusted discount rate - The discount rates are derived from the Company’s weighted average cost of capital, taking into account the cost of capital, to which specific

market-related premium adjustments.

40. The Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 599.39 Mn as on March 31, 2020. Further, the Company's current liabilities exceed current assets by Rs. 8.45 Mn. Current
liabilities include amount payable to Mountainia Developers and Hospitality Private Limited {the parent company) of Rs, 7.82 Mn as on March 31, 2020. The parent company
has given a support letter to the Company about confirming their financial ability and intention to provide financial and operational support to the Company for a period 12
months. The Company has considered possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID 19 and has made detailed assessment of its going concern

liquidity position for next one year and believes that they can meet all their obligations with the support of the parent company Also, the parent company confirm

assumption,
ent in the Company in the form of equity investment and unsecured loan,

that they will provide unconditional and irrevocable financial support by way of continuous investm
as and when required. In view of the above, these accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis

41, Segment reporting

The Company is into Hospitality business. The Board of Directors of the Company functions in a supervisory capacity. The management of the Company which has been

identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company performance, advises on resource allocation and monitor various performance indicator
of the Company as a single unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”. Further, the
Company has only domestic operations. Therefore, the Company does not operate in more than one geographical segment hence the relevant disclosures as per Ind AS 108

are not applicable to the Company.

42. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
43. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

44, The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31 2019, were audited by Walker Chandiok & Co., Chartered Accountants, the predecessor auditor. The
previous year's figures have been re-grouped/reclassified, where necessary to r.onjsym_ to current year’s classification.
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